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nesses and the production of documents relating 
to any matter under investigation. In case of 
disobedience of the subpoena or contumacy and 
on request of the Secretary, the Attorney Gen-
eral may apply to any district court of the 
United States in whose jurisdiction such disobe-
dience or contumacy occurs for an order enforc-
ing the subpoena. 

(4) Upon application, the district courts of the 
United States shall have jurisdiction to issue 
writs commanding any person or agency to com-
ply with the subpoena of the Secretary or to 
comply with any order of the Secretary made 
pursuant to a lawful investigation under this 
subsection and the district courts shall have ju-
risdiction to punish failure to obey a subpoena 
or other lawful order of the Secretary as a con-
tempt of court. 

(c)(1)(A) If the Secretary of Labor determines 
as a result of an investigation under subsection 
(b) that the action alleged in a complaint under 
subsection (a) occurred, the Secretary shall at-
tempt to resolve the complaint by making rea-
sonable efforts to ensure that the agency speci-
fied in the complaint complies with applicable 
provisions of statute or regulation relating to 
veterans’ preference. 

(B) The Secretary of Labor shall make deter-
minations referred to in subparagraph (A) based 
on a preponderance of the evidence. 

(2) If the efforts of the Secretary under sub-
section (b) with respect to a complaint under 
subsection (a) do not result in the resolution of 
the complaint, the Secretary shall notify the 
person who submitted the complaint, in writing, 
of the results of the Secretary’s investigation 
under subsection (b). 

(d)(1) If the Secretary of Labor is unable to re-
solve a complaint under subsection (a) within 60 
days after the date on which it is filed, the com-
plainant may elect to appeal the alleged viola-
tion to the Merit Systems Protection Board in 
accordance with such procedures as the Merit 
Systems Protection Board shall prescribe, ex-
cept that in no event may any such appeal be 
brought— 

(A) before the 61st day after the date on 
which the complaint is filed; or 

(B) later than 15 days after the date on 
which the complainant receives written notifi-
cation from the Secretary under subsection 
(c)(2). 

(2) An appeal under this subsection may not be 
brought unless— 

(A) the complainant first provides written 
notification to the Secretary of such com-
plainant’s intention to bring such appeal; and 

(B) appropriate evidence of compliance with 
subparagraph (A) is included (in such form and 
manner as the Merit Systems Protection 
Board may prescribe) with the notice of appeal 
under this subsection. 

(3) Upon receiving notification under para-
graph (2)(A), the Secretary shall not continue to 
investigate or further attempt to resolve the 
complaint to which the notification relates. 

(e)(1) This section shall not be construed to 
prohibit a preference eligible from appealing di-
rectly to the Merit Systems Protection Board 
from any action which is appealable to the 

Board under any other law, rule, or regulation, 
in lieu of administrative redress under this sec-
tion. 

(2) A preference eligible may not pursue re-
dress for an alleged violation described in sub-
section (a) under this section at the same time 
the preference eligible pursues redress for such 
violation under any other law, rule, or regula-
tion. 

(Added Pub. L. 105–339, § 3(a), Oct. 31, 1998, 112 
Stat. 3182; amended Pub. L. 108–454, title VIII, 
§ 804(a), Dec. 10, 2004, 118 Stat. 3626.) 

AMENDMENTS 

2004—Subsec. (a)(1). Pub. L. 108–454 designated exist-
ing provisions as subpar. (A) and added subpar. (B). 

§ 3330b. Preference eligibles; judicial redress 

(a) In lieu of continuing the administrative re-
dress procedure provided under section 3330a(d), 
a preference eligible, or a veteran described by 
section 3330a(a)(1)(B) with respect to a violation 
described by such section, may elect, in accord-
ance with this section, to terminate those ad-
ministrative proceedings and file an action with 
the appropriate United States district court not 
later than 60 days after the date of the election. 

(b) An election under this section may not be 
made— 

(1) before the 121st day after the date on 
which the appeal is filed with the Merit Sys-
tems Protection Board under section 3330a(d); 
or 

(2) after the Merit Systems Protection Board 
has issued a judicially reviewable decision on 
the merits of the appeal. 

(c) An election under this section shall be 
made, in writing, in such form and manner as 
the Merit Systems Protection Board shall by 
regulation prescribe. The election shall be effec-
tive as of the date on which it is received, and 
the administrative proceeding to which it re-
lates shall terminate immediately upon the re-
ceipt of such election. 

(Added Pub. L. 105–339, § 3(a), Oct. 31, 1998, 112 
Stat. 3184; amended Pub. L. 108–454, title VIII, 
§ 804(b), Dec. 10, 2004, 118 Stat. 3626.) 

AMENDMENTS 

2004—Subsec. (a). Pub. L. 108–454, which directed in-
sertion of ‘‘, or a veteran described by section 
3330a(a)(1)(B) with respect to a violation described by 
such section,’’ after ‘‘a preference eligible’’ in subsec. 
(a) of section 3330b, without specifying the Code title to 
be amended, was executed by making the insertion in 
subsec. (a) of this section, to reflect the probable intent 
of Congress. 

§ 3330c. Preference eligibles; remedy 

(a) If the Merit Systems Protection Board (in 
a proceeding under section 3330a) or a court (in 
a proceeding under section 3330b) determines 
that an agency has violated a right described in 
section 3330a, the Board or court (as the case 
may be) shall order the agency to comply with 
such provisions and award compensation for any 
loss of wages or benefits suffered by the individ-
ual by reason of the violation involved. If the 
Board or court determines that such violation 
was willful, it shall award an amount equal to 
backpay as liquidated damages. 
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(b) A preference eligible who prevails in an ac-
tion under section 3330a or 3330b shall be award-
ed reasonable attorney fees, expert witness fees, 
and other litigation expenses. 

(Added Pub. L. 105–339, § 3(a), Oct. 31, 1998, 112 
Stat. 3184.) 

SUBCHAPTER II—OATH OF OFFICE 

§ 3331. Oath of office 

An individual, except the President, elected or 
appointed to an office of honor or profit in the 
civil service or uniformed services, shall take 
the following oath: ‘‘I, AB, do solemnly swear 
(or affirm) that I will support and defend the 
Constitution of the United States against all en-
emies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear 
true faith and allegiance to the same; that I 
take this obligation freely, without any mental 
reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will 
well and faithfully discharge the duties of the 
office on which I am about to enter. So help me 
God.’’ This section does not affect other oaths 
required by law. 

(Pub. L. 89–554, Sept. 6, 1966, 80 Stat. 424.) 

HISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Derivation U.S. Code 
Revised Statutes and 

Statutes at Large 

.................. 5 U.S.C. 16. R.S. § 1757. 

May 13, 1884, ch. 46, §§ 2, 3, 23 

Stat. 22. 

All but the quoted language in R.S. § 1757 is omitted 
as obsolete since R.S. § 1757 was originally an alter-
native oath to the oath prescribed in R.S. § 1756 which 
oath was repealed by the Act of May 13, 1884, ch. 46, § 2, 
23 Stat. 22. The words ‘‘An individual, except the Presi-
dent, . . . in the civil service or uniformed services’’ are 
substituted for ‘‘any person . . . either in the civil, mili-
tary, or naval service, except the President of the 
United States’’. The second sentence of former section 
16 is changed to read, ‘‘This section does not affect 
other oaths required by law.’’. 

Standard changes are made to conform with the defi-
nitions applicable and the style of this title as outlined 
in the preface to the report. 

§ 3332. Officer affidavit; no consideration paid 
for appointment 

An officer, within 30 days after the effective 
date of his appointment, shall file with the oath 
of office required by section 3331 of this title an 
affidavit that neither he nor anyone acting in 
his behalf has given, transferred, promised, or 
paid any consideration for or in the expectation 
or hope of receiving assistance in securing the 
appointment. 

(Pub. L. 89–554, Sept. 6, 1966, 80 Stat. 424.) 

HISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Derivation U.S. Code 
Revised Statutes and 

Statutes at Large 

.................. 5 U.S.C. 21a. Dec. 11, 1926, ch. 4, § 1, 44 

Stat. 918. 

Mar. 2, 1927, ch. 284, 44 Stat. 

1346. 

Sept. 23, 1950, ch. 1010, § 10, 

64 Stat. 987. 

The section is restated for clarity and conciseness. 
The term ‘‘officer’’ is coextensive with and substituted 

for ‘‘Each individual appointed hereafter as a civil offi-
cer of the United States by the President, by and with 
the advice and consent of the Senate, or by the Presi-
dent alone, or by a court of law, or by the head of a de-
partment’’ in view of the definition of ‘‘officer’’ in sec-
tion 2104. 

Standard changes are made to conform with the defi-
nitions applicable and the style of this title as outlined 
in the preface to the report. 

§ 3333. Employee affidavit; loyalty and striking 
against the Government 

(a) Except as provided by subsection (b) of this 
section, an individual who accepts office or em-
ployment in the Government of the United 
States or in the government of the District of 
Columbia shall execute an affidavit within 60 
days after accepting the office or employment 
that his acceptance and holding of the office or 
employment does not or will not violate section 
7311 of this title. The affidavit is prima facie evi-
dence that the acceptance and holding of office 
or employment by the affiant does not or will 
not violate section 7311 of this title. 

(b) An affidavit is not required from an indi-
vidual employed by the Government of the 
United States or the government of the District 
of Columbia for less than 60 days for sudden 
emergency work involving the loss of human life 
or the destruction of property. This subsection 
does not relieve an individual from liability for 
violation of section 7311 of this title. 

(Pub. L. 89–554, Sept. 6, 1966, 80 Stat. 424.) 

HISTORICAL AND REVISION NOTES 

Derivation U.S. Code 
Revised Statutes and 

Statutes at Large 

.................. 5 U.S.C. 118q. Aug. 9, 1955, ch. 690, § 2, 69 

Stat. 624. 

.................. [Uncodified]. June 29, 1956, ch. 479, § 3 (as 

applicable to the Act of 

Aug. 9, 1955, ch. 690, § 2, 69 

Stat. 624), 70 Stat. 453. 

The section is restated for clarity and to conform to 
the style of section 3332. 

In subsection (a), the words ‘‘after August 9, 1955’’ are 
omitted as executed. The words ‘‘if the affidavit is exe-
cuted prior to acceptance of such office or employ-
ment’’ are omitted as unnecessary. The words ‘‘From 
and after July 1, 1956’’, appearing in the Act of June 29, 
1956, are omitted as executed. 

Standard changes are made to conform with the defi-
nitions applicable and the style of this title as outlined 
in the preface to the report. 

SUBCHAPTER III—DETAILS, VACANCIES, 
AND APPOINTMENTS 

AMENDMENTS 

1998—Pub. L. 105–277, div. C, title I, § 151(c)(2), Oct. 21, 
1998, 112 Stat. 2681–616, substituted ‘‘DETAILS, VACAN-
CIES, AND APPOINTMENTS’’ for ‘‘DETAILS’’ as sub-
chapter heading. 

ANNUAL REPORT TO CONGRESS ON EMPLOYEES OR MEM-
BERS OF ARMED SERVICES DETAILED TO EXECUTIVE 
AGENCIES; EXEMPTIONS 

Pub. L. 103–329, title VI, § 619, Sept. 30, 1993, 108 Stat. 
2420, which directed each Executive agency detailing 
personnel submit an annual report to Senate and House 
Committees on Appropriations on all employees or 
members of armed services detailed to Executive agen-
cies, listing grade, position, and offices of each person 
detailed and agency to which each such person was de-
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